

MAINE STATE LEGISLATURE

The following document is provided by the
LAW AND LEGISLATIVE DIGITAL LIBRARY
at the Maine State Law and Legislative Reference Library
<http://legislature.maine.gov/lawlib>



Reproduced from electronic originals
(may include minor formatting differences from printed original)

LAWS
OF THE
STATE OF MAINE

AS PASSED BY THE

ONE HUNDRED AND TWENTY-FOURTH LEGISLATURE

FIRST REGULAR SESSION
December 3, 2008 to June 13, 2009

THE GENERAL EFFECTIVE DATE FOR
FIRST REGULAR SESSION
NON-EMERGENCY LAWS IS
SEPTEMBER 12, 2009

PUBLISHED BY THE REVISOR OF STATUTES
IN ACCORDANCE WITH MAINE REVISED STATUTES ANNOTATED,
TITLE 3, SECTION 163-A, SUBSECTION 4.

Augusta, Maine
2009

WELS, in Aroostook County. The date of the submission must be determined by the Aroostook County Board of Commissioners but may not be later than 6 months after adjournment of the First Regular Session of the 124th Legislature. The Aroostook County commissioners are authorized to expend such funds as necessary to implement the referendum.

The county commissioners shall cause the preparation of the required ballots, on which they shall state the subject matter of this Act in the following question:

"Do you favor changing the name of Township 16, Range 4, WELS, to Madawaska Lake?"

The voters shall indicate by a cross or a check mark placed against the words "Yes" or "No" their opinion of the question.

This Act takes effect immediately upon its acceptance by a majority of the legal voters voting at the election.

The result of the election must be declared by the Aroostook County commissioners and due certificate filed with the Secretary of State.

Emergency clause. In view of the emergency cited in the preamble, this legislation takes effect when approved.

Effective April 17, 2009.

CHAPTER 8

H.P. 165 - L.D. 200

An Act To Amend the Charter of the Caribou Utilities District

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. P&SL 1945, c. 83, §1 is amended to read:

Sec. 1. Territorial limits and corporate name and purposes. The inhabitants and territory within the ~~town~~ City of Caribou in the ~~county~~ County of Aroostook ~~shall be, and hereby are, constituted~~ constitute a body politic and corporate under the name of the Caribou Utilities District, referred to in this Act as "the district," for the purpose of supplying the ~~town~~ City of Caribou and the inhabitants of ~~said town~~ the city or any part of ~~said town~~ the city with pure water for domestic, commercial, sanitary and municipal purposes, including the extinguishment of fires, and of supplying the ~~town~~ City of Caribou and the inhabitants of ~~said town~~ the city or any part of ~~said town~~ the City with suitable and adequate sewerage facilities.

Sec. 2. P&SL 1945, c. 83, §2 is amended to read:

Sec. 2. Powers of Caribou Utilities District. ~~Said Caribou Utilities District~~ The district is hereby authorized for the purposes ~~aforsaid of this Act~~ to take, collect, store, flow, use, detain, distribute and convey to the town City of Caribou or any part ~~thereof of the city~~ water from any lake, pond, stream, or river and from any surface or underground brook, spring or vein of water in said town the City of Caribou; and is also authorized to locate, construct and maintain aqueducts, pipes, conduits, standpipes, hydrants, pumping stations and other necessary structures and equipment ~~therefore, for the aqueducts, pipes, conduits, standpipes, hydrants and pumping stations~~ and do all things necessary to furnish water, and sewerage and drainage for public purposes and for public health, comfort and convenience of the inhabitants of said the district.

Sec. 3. P&SL 1945, c. 83, §3 is repealed and the following enacted in its place:

Sec. 3. Right of eminent domain conferred. The district is authorized and empowered to acquire and hold real and personal property necessary or convenient for its purposes. The district is granted the right of eminent domain as specified in the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 38, section 1152 with respect to its sewer functions and is granted the right of eminent domain as specified in Title 35-A, section 6408 with respect to its water functions.

Sec. 4. P&SL 1945, c. 83, §4 is amended to read:

Sec. 4. Authorized to lay mains, pipes, conduits through public ways and across private lands. The said district is hereby authorized to lay in and through the streets, roads, ways and highways of the ~~town~~ City of Caribou and other towns served by ~~the district~~ the district and across private lands ~~therein, in the city and other towns~~ and to maintain, repair and replace all such pipes, mains, conduits, aqueducts, and fixtures as may be necessary and convenient for its corporate purposes, and whenever said the district shall lay lays any pipes, aqueducts or conduits in any street, roadway or highway, ~~the district~~ the district shall cause the same to be done with as little obstruction as practicable to the public travel; and shall at ~~its~~ the district's own expense, without unnecessary delay, cause the earth and pavement removed by ~~the district~~ the district to be replaced in proper conditions.

Sec. 5. P&SL 1945, c. 83, §4-A is enacted to read:

Sec. 4-A. Sewer extensions. Sewer extensions are governed by the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 38, section 1252, subsection 7.

Sec. 6. P&SL 1945, c. 83, §5, as repealed and replaced by P&SL 1981, c. 47, §1, is repealed and the following enacted in its place:

Sec. 5. Procedure as to the exercise of right of eminent domain for sewer; appeal. In exercising rights of eminent domain with respect to its sewer functions, the district shall comply with the procedures established in the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 38, sections 1152-A, 1153 and 1154.

Sec. 7. P&SL 1945, c. 83, §6 is repealed.

Sec. 8. P&SL 1945, c. 83, §6-A is enacted to read:

Sec. 6-A. Procedure as to the exercise of right of eminent domain for water. In exercising rights of eminent domain with respect to its water functions, the district shall comply with the procedures established in the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 35-A, section 6409.

Sec. 9. P&SL 1945, c. 83, §8-A is enacted to read:

Sec. 8-A. Trustees' compensation. Trustees' compensation is governed by the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 38, section 1252, subsection 5.

Sec. 10. P&SL 1945, c. 83, §8-B is enacted to read:

Sec. 8-B. Trustees' retirement eligibility. Trustees' retirement is governed by the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 38, section 1252, subsection 6.

Sec. 11. P&SL 1945, c. 83, §11, as repealed and replaced by P&SL 1981, c. 47, §4, is repealed and the following enacted in its place:

Sec. 11. Procedures for acquisition of property and franchise of Caribou Water Works Corporation. Before exercising any right of eminent domain conferred under this Act with respect to the property of the Caribou Water Works Corporation, the district shall make a reasonable effort to acquire the property by purchase. The district shall cause the property to be appraised for the purpose of determining the amount that could constitute just compensation for the taking of the property. The district's agents, employees or designees may, upon 30 days' written notice to the Caribou Water Works Corporation, enter upon the real property of the Caribou Water Works Corporation and make surveys, examinations, photographs, tests and samplings of the real or personal property of the Caribou Water Works Corporation for the purpose of appraising the real or personal property. The entry must take place during daylight hours. The entry and activities authorized by this Act do not constitute a trespass, but the district is liable for physical injury to, and for substantial interference with possession or use of, property of the Caribou Water Works Corporation caused by the district's entry

and activities upon the property, which damages may be recovered by complaint in a civil action. The district shall establish the amount that the district believes to be just compensation for the property and shall submit to the Caribou Water Works Corporation a proposed offer to purchase the property for the amount established. Compliance by the district with this section is determined to be and constitutes a reasonable effort by the district to acquire the property by purchase.

Sec. 12. P&SL 1945, c. 83, §12, first sentence, as repealed and replaced by P&SL 1981, c. 47, §5, is amended to read:

Sec. 12. Authorized to borrow money; to issue bonds and notes. For accomplishing the purposes of this Act, the district, by vote of its board of trustees, without district vote, except as provided in this section, is authorized to borrow money temporarily and to issue ~~therefore for the borrowing of money~~ its negotiable notes; ~~and for~~. For the purpose of renewing and refunding the indebtedness ~~so~~ created, or paying any necessary expenses and liabilities incurred under the provisions of this Act, and in acquiring properties, paying damages, laying pipes, mains, sewers, drains and conduits, purchasing, constructing, maintaining and operating a water system and a sewerage system and making renewals, additions, extensions and improvements to the system and to cover interest payments during any period of construction, the district, by vote of its board of trustees, without district vote, except as provided in this section, is authorized to issue, from time to time, bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness of the district, bearing interest at such rate or rates, and having such terms and provisions as the trustees ~~shall determine; provided that in~~. In the case of a vote by the trustees to authorize bonds or notes to pay for the acquisition of property, for the cost of a water system or sewerage system or part thereof of a water system or sewerage system, for renewal or additions or for other improvements in the nature of capital costs, the estimated cost of which, singly or in the aggregate included in any one financing is \$150,000 or more, subject to the annual consumer price index, as published by the ~~appropriate governmental agency~~ United States Department of Labor for all urban consumers, United States city average, and as defined in the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 36, section 5402, ~~must first be approved by local referendum of the voters of the district, but not for the acquisition of the property of the Caribou Water Works Corporation provided in this Act, and not for the already planned for local share of sewerage treatment plant, the aggregate of both of which shall not exceed \$6,000,000 or for renewing or refunding existing indebtedness or to pay for maintenance, repairs or current expenses~~ the district shall comply with the provisions of Title 35-A, section 6310.

Sec. 13. P&SL 1945, c. 83, §13 is amended to read:

Sec. 13. Property, tax exempt. The property of ~~said Caribou Utilities District the district shall be~~ is exempt from all taxation in the ~~town~~ City of Caribou.

Sec. 14. P&SL 1945, c. 83, §15, as repealed and replaced by P&SL 1981, c. 47, §6, is repealed and the following enacted in its place:

Sec. 15. Rates. All water rates, tolls, rents and charges of the district are governed by the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 35-A, chapter 3 and chapter 61. All sewer rates, tolls, rents and charges of the district are governed by Title 38, section 1202.

Sec. 15. P&SL 1945, c. 83, §16-A, as enacted by P&SL 1957, c. 7, §2, is amended to read:

Sec. 16-A. Rights of abutters to enter sewer. The district at all times ~~shall be~~ is bound to permit the ~~owners~~ owner or agent of premises abutting upon ~~its~~ the district's lines of pipes and conduits to enter the same with all proper sewage, upon conformity to the rules and regulations of the district and payment of the rates, tolls, rents and charges established ~~therefor~~. Every building in the district intended for human habitation or occupancy on premises abutting on a street in which there is a public sewer or any such building within 100 feet of a public sewer ~~shall~~ must have a sewerage system ~~which shall be caused to be connected with~~ to the public sewer by the owner or agent of the premises in the most direct manner possible, and, if feasible, with a separate connection for each house or building; ~~except that existing buildings which are already served by a satisfactory private sewage disposal system which meets and continues to meet the requirements of section 122 (b) of the state plumbing code and amendments thereto shall not be required to connect with the public sewer. Any such Exceptions to the requirement to connect to the public sewer are governed by the Maine Revised Statutes Title 38, section 1252, subsection 3. A private sewage disposal system which that is not required to connect to the public sewer pursuant to Title 38, section 1252, subsection 3 that fails to meet or continue to meet the requirements of section 122 (b) of the state plumbing code and amendments thereto to the state plumbing code is hereby~~ declared to be a public nuisance.

Sec. 16. P&SL 1945, c. 83, §16-B, as enacted by P&SL 1957, c. 7, §2, is repealed and the following enacted in its place:

Sec. 16-B. Lien for payment of rates. Liens for unpaid water rates, tolls, rents or charges are governed by the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 35-A, section 6111-A. Liens for unpaid sewer rates, tolls, rents or charges are governed by Title 38, section 1208.

See title page for effective date.

CHAPTER 9

H.P. 254 - L.D. 318

An Act Regarding Rockport College

Emergency preamble. Whereas, acts and resolves of the Legislature do not become effective until 90 days after adjournment unless enacted as emergencies; and

Whereas, authorization by the Legislature is required for any institution of higher education to confer academic, educational, literary or professional degrees, upon the recommendation of the State Board of Education; and

Whereas, Rockport College, which does business as Maine Media College, offers professional certification and graduate education in the fields of photography, filmmaking and video and multimedia and intends to offer a Master of Fine Arts degree and needs to receive approval of degree-granting authority; and

Whereas, it is necessary for the Legislature to grant this authority in order that the school may begin offering degrees for students currently enrolled in programs; and

Whereas, in the judgment of the Legislature, these facts create an emergency within the meaning of the Constitution of Maine and require the following legislation as immediately necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and safety; now, therefore,

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows:

Sec. 1. Degree. The school known as Rockport College is renamed Maine Media College and is authorized until June 30, 2010 to confer upon all who successfully complete its prescribed course of study the degree of Master of Fine Arts as is usually conferred by like institutions of higher learning.

Emergency clause. In view of the emergency cited in the preamble, this legislation takes effect when approved.

Effective April 17, 2009.

CHAPTER 10

S.P. 373 - L.D. 994

An Act To Amend the Charter of the Milo Water District

Be it enacted by the People of the State of Maine as follows: